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Consolidated interim statement of comprehensive income

For the Three months period ended 31 March, 2015

Group Group Bank Bank

3 Months 3 Months 3 Months 3 Months

In thousands of Naira  Notes Ended Ended Ended Ended

March March March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

Gross Earnings 76,780,884              57,267,026                68,425,453            51,351,690          

Continuing operations

Interest Income 1 46,414,876               39,628,026                 41,158,541             35,902,402           

Interest Expense 2 (22,822,168)             (15,228,992)               (20,843,162)           (15,011,079)         

Net Interest Income 23,592,708              24,399,034                20,315,378            20,891,323          

Fee and commisison income 3 9,619,279                 10,367,092                 7,822,442               8,825,680             

Fee and commisison expense (11,602)                     (3,372)                          -                           -                         

Net fee and commission income 9,607,677                 10,363,720                7,822,442               8,825,680             

Net gains on financial instruments 

classified as held for trading           4 (a) 13,129,400               25,795                         13,121,829             16,024                   

Net foreign exchange income/(loss)           4 (b) 3,453,327                 3,075,311                   2,419,320               2,592,241             

other operating income 5 4,175,602                 4,174,174                   3,903,321               4,015,343             

20,758,330              7,275,280                   19,444,470            6,623,608             

Operating income before impairment gain/(loss) 53,958,716              42,038,034                47,582,291            36,340,611          

Net impairment gain/ (loss) on financial assets 6 (3,867,672)                (1,513,706)                  (3,687,861)              (1,474,079)            

Operating income after impairment gain/(loss) 50,091,044              40,524,328                43,894,429            34,866,532          

Personnel expenses 7 (8,890,557)                (7,450,531)                  (7,293,156)              (6,103,534)            

Depreciation and amortization (2,373,247)                (2,085,767)                  (2,144,599)              (1,874,625)            

Other operating expenses 8 (22,309,864)             (17,611,584)               (20,432,513)           (16,001,989)         

Total expenses (33,573,668)             (27,147,882)               (29,870,268)           (23,980,148)         

Share of profit of equity accounted investee 9 -                             52,678                         -                           -                         

Profit before income tax 16,517,376              13,429,124                14,024,162            10,886,384          

Income tax expense (2,849,819)                (1,309,944)                  (1,823,141)              (1,229,422)            

Profit for the period from continuing operations 13,667,556              12,119,180                12,201,021            9,656,962             

Discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations -                             (493,547)                     -                           -                         

Profit for the period 13,667,556              11,625,633                12,201,021            9,656,962             



Consolidated interim statement of comprehensive income

For the Three months period ended 31 March, 2015

Profit attributable to :

Equity holders of the parent entity 13,493,381               11,499,086                 12,201,021             9,656,962             

Non controlling interest 174,175                    126,547                      -                           -                         

13,667,556              11,625,633                12,201,021            9,656,962             

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 1,575,709                 285,761                      -                           -                         

Net change in fair value of available for sale financial assets 517,150                    (494,137)                     517,150                  (372,746)               

Share of OCI of equity accounted investee -                             (1,751)                          -                           -                         

Other comprehensive (loss)/gain for the year, net of tax 2,092,859                 (210,127)                     517,150                  (372,746)               

Total comprehensive income for the period 15,760,416              11,415,506                12,718,171            9,284,216             

Basic EPS (kobo) 60                               51                                 53                             42                           

Diluted EPS (kobo) 60                               51                                 53                             42                           



Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position

As at 31 March, 2015

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

In thousands of Naira Notes 2015 2014 2015 2014

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10 381,627,914                405,014,793                319,682,944                351,174,879                

Non pledged trading assets 11 55,452,551                  28,411,644                  55,307,344                  28,411,644                  

Pledged assets 12 93,022,898                  87,072,147                  93,022,898                  85,183,353                  

Derivative financial instruments 37,078,505                  24,866,681                  37,078,505                  24,831,145                  

Loans and Advances to banks 11,869,512                  12,435,659                  66,576,600                  55,776,837                  

Loans and advances to customers 13 1,141,145,643             1,110,464,442             1,011,879,684             1,019,908,848             

Investment in subsidiaries 14 -                                 -                                 40,120,571                  40,120,571                  

Investment securities 15 231,620,630                270,211,388                186,574,687                226,137,983                

Property and equipment 16 70,854,558                  69,659,707                  65,646,956                  64,160,327                  

Intangible assets 17 5,420,732                     5,592,992                     4,245,303                     4,436,816                     

Deferred tax assets 10,793,600                  10,881,984                  10,128,537                  10,128,537                  

Other assets 18 74,066,614                  56,310,620                  65,812,670                  48,246,307                  

Assets classified as held for sale 19 23,438,484                  23,438,483                  23,438,482                  23,438,484                  

Total assets 2,136,391,640             2,104,360,540             1,979,515,181             1,981,955,731             

Liabilities

Deposits from financial institutions 20 168,540,967                119,045,423                167,785,632                134,509,662                

Deposits from customers 21 1,394,904,496             1,454,419,052             1,246,338,993             1,324,800,611             

Derivative financial instruments 754,577                        1,989,662                     754,577                        1,737,791                     

Debt securities issued 22 144,934,119                138,481,179                79,608,331                  73,155,391                  

Retirement benefit obligations 23 3,568,006                     3,269,100                     3,517,364                     3,267,364                     

Current tax liabilities 24 8,671,878                     8,180,969                     7,754,712                     7,113,226                     

Other liabilities 25 40,154,566                  21,689,079                  35,538,083                  16,870,132                  

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 26 81,532,174                  79,816,309                  151,310,141                146,345,766                

Deferred tax liabilities 126,324                        59,038                          -                                 -                                 

Total liabilities 1,843,187,106             1,826,949,811             1,692,607,834             1,707,799,944             

Equity

Share capital and share premium 27 172,477,671                172,477,671                172,477,671                172,477,671                

Retained earnings 28 47,632,834                  34,139,453                  48,700,801                  36,499,779                  

Other components of equity 29 69,389,010                  67,262,762                  65,728,875                  65,178,336                  

Total equity attributable to owners of the Bank 289,499,516                273,879,885                286,907,347                274,155,786                

Non controlling interest 30 3,705,018                     3,530,843                     -                                 -                                 

Total equity 293,204,534                277,410,728                286,907,347                274,155,786                

Total liabilities and equity 2,136,391,640             2,104,360,540             1,979,515,181             1,981,955,731             



Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity

For the period ended 31 March 2015

In thousands of Naira

Bank Regulatory Other Share

Share Share risk regulatory Scheme Capital Fair value Retained Total

capital premium reserve reserves reserve Reserve reserve earnings Equity

Balance at 1 January 2015 11,441,460        161,036,212           17,001,981              34,558,437           295,419              3,489,081          9,833,418           36,499,779                274,155,786             

Total comprehensive income for the period:

Profit for the period -                    -                         -                       -                    -                    -                     12,201,021             12,201,021            

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Unrealised foreign currency translation difference -                    -                         -                         -                       -                    -                    -                     -                            -                           

Net changes in fair value of AFS financial instruments -                    -                         -                         -                       -                    -                    517,150            -                            517,150                  

 Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) -                      -                            -                            -                          -                      -                      517,150              -                              517,150                     

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) -                      -                            -                            -                          -                      -                      517,150              12,201,021                12,718,171               

Transactions with equity holders, recorded directly in equity:

Transfers for the year -                    -                         -                         -                       -                    -                    -                     -                            -                           

Dividend paid to equity holders -                    -                         -                         -                       -                    -                    -                     -                            -                           

Scheme shares -                    -                         -                         -                       33,389              -                    -                     -                           33,389                    

Balance at 31 March 2015 11,441,460        161,036,212           17,001,981              34,558,437           328,808              3,489,081          10,350,568         48,700,800                286,907,346             

Regulatory Other Share

In thousands of Naira Share Share risk regulatory Scheme Capital Fair value Retained Total

Bank capital premium reserve reserves reserve Reserve reserve earnings Equity

Balance at 1 January 2014 11,441,460        161,036,212           11,177,662              28,567,268           112,783              3,489,081          6,262,140           23,095,392                245,181,998             

Total comprehensive income for the period:

Profit for the period -                    -                         -                       -                    -                    -                     9,775,173               9,775,173              

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Unrealised foreign currency translation difference -                    -                         -                         -                       -                    -                    -                     -                            -                           

Net changes in fair value of AFS financial instruments -                    -                         -                         -                       -                    -                    (372,747)           -                            (372,747)                

-                    -                         -                         -                       -                    -                    -                            -                           

 Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) -                      -                            -                            -                          -                      -                      (372,747)             -                              (372,747)                   

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) -                      -                            -                            -                          -                      -                      (372,747)             9,775,173                  9,402,426                 

Transactions with equity holders, recorded directly in equity:

Transfers for the year -                    -                         -                         1,528,355           -                    -                    -                     (1,528,355)              -                           

Dividend paid to equity holders -                    -                         -                         -                       -                    -                    -                     -                            -                           

Scheme shares -                    -                         -                         -                       28,196              -                    -                     -                           28,196                    

Balance at 31 March 2014 11,441,460        161,036,212           11,177,662              30,095,623           140,979              3,489,081          5,889,393           31,342,210                254,612,622             



Consolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity

For the period ended 31 March 2015

In thousands of Naira Foreign

Group Regulatory Other Share currency Non  

Share Share risk regulatory Scheme Treasury Capital Fair value Contingency translation Retained Controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserves reserve Shares Reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest Equity

Balance at 1 January 2015 11,441,460       161,036,212          21,205,031                37,078,604              295,419             (976,127)           3,489,080                9,881,402               -                              (3,710,648)                  34,139,453               273,879,885            3,530,843              277,410,729            

Total comprehensive income for the period:

Profit for the period -                   -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        -                          -                            13,493,381            13,493,381           174,175              13,667,556           

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Unrealised foreign currency translation difference -                   -                        -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        -                          1,575,709                -                          1,575,709             -                       1,575,709             

Net changes in fair value of AFS financial instruments -                   -                        -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         517,150                -                          -                          517,150                 -                       517,150                 

Fair value changes on AFS financial instruments from associates -                   -                        -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        -                          -                          -                         -                       -                         

 Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) -                      -                            -                               -                             -                      -                      -                             517,150                   -                              1,575,709                   -                              2,092,859                -                          2,092,859                

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) -                      -                            -                               -                             -                      -                      -                             517,150                   -                              1,575,709                   13,493,381               15,586,241              174,175                 15,760,416              

Transactions with equity holders, recorded directly in equity:

Scheme shares -                   -                        -                           -                         33,389             -                   -                         -                        -                          -                            -                          33,389                   -                       33,389                   

Dividend paid to equity holders -                   -                        -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        -                          -                            -                          -                         -                       -                         

Balance at 31 March 2015 11,441,460       161,036,212          21,205,031                37,078,604              328,808             (976,127)           3,489,080                10,398,552             -                              (2,134,939)                  47,632,834               289,499,515            3,705,018              293,204,534            

Consolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity

For the period ended 31 March 2014

In thousands of Naira

Group Regulatory Other Share currency Non  

Share Share risk regulatory Scheme Treasury Capital Fair value Contingency translation Retained Controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserves reserve Shares Reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest Equity

Balance at 1 January 2014 11,441,460       161,036,212          13,074,748                30,365,409              112,783             (460,580)           3,489,080                6,237,939               -                              (4,815,485)                  22,232,375               242,713,941            1,768,110              244,482,051            

Total comprehensive income for the period:

Profit for the period -                   -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        -                          -                            11,617,297            11,617,297           126,547              11,743,844           

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Unrealized foreign currency translation difference -                   -                        -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        -                          188,574                   -                          188,574                 -                       188,574                 

Realized foreign currency translation difference -                   -                        -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        -                          97,187                      -                          97,187                   -                       97,187                   

Net changes in fair value of AFS financial instruments -                   -                        -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         (249,776)              -                          -                          (249,776)               -                       (249,776)               

Fair value changes on AFS financial instruments from associates -                   -                        -                           -                         -                   -                   -                         (1,765)                   -                          -                          (1,765)                    -                       (1,765)                    

 Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) -                      -                            -                               -                             -                      -                      -                             (251,541)                 -                              285,761                       -                              34,219                      -                          34,219                      

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) -                      -                            -                               -                             -                      -                      -                             (251,541)                 -                              285,761                       11,617,297               11,651,516              126,547                 11,778,063              

Transactions with equity holders, recorded directly in equity:

Transfers during the period -                   -                        (114,925)                 100,411                 -                   -                   -                         -                        -                          -                            14,514                    -                         -                       -                         

Scheme shares -                   -                        -                           -                         28,196             -                   -                         -                        -                          -                            -                          28,196                   -                       28,196                   

Transfer from disposed subsidiaries (399,039)             (399,039)               

Balance at 31 March 2014 11,441,460       161,036,212          12,959,823                30,465,820              140,979             (460,580)           3,489,080                5,986,397               -                              (4,529,724)                  33,864,186               254,393,653            1,495,618              255,889,269            



Consolidated interim statement of cash flows

For the Three months period ended 31 March, 2015

in thousands of naira

Group Group

March March

2015 2014

Cash flow from Operating activities

Profit before income tax and discontinued operations 16,517,376                    12,935,577                   

Adjustments for:

Fair value gain on derivatives 12,211,824                    -                                 

Depreciation and amortization 2,373,247                      2,085,767                     

Impairment reversal/ charge on financial assets 3,867,672                      1,289,918                     

Gain on disposal of property and equipments (230,781)                        (44,288)                         

Fair value gain on investment property -                                 -                                 

Contributions to defined benefit plans 540,276                         249,211                         

Share of profit of equity accounted investee -                                 (52,678)                         

Operating lease expense 616,380                         458,863                         

Equity share-based payment expense 28,196                           

(Profit)/loss on sale of investment securities -                                 -                                 

Profit/lossLoss on disposal of subsidiaries -                                 493,545                         

Dividends received (230,909)                        (2,070,127)                    

Loans written off 807,391                         

Net interest income (23,592,708)                  (22,071,881)                  

Gain on disposal of investment properties

Net Cash flow before changes in operating assets 12,072,376                   (5,890,506)                    

Changes in operating assets 

Change in Non-Pledged Trading Assets (27,040,907)                  (11,213,053)                  

Change in Pledged assets (5,950,751)                    -                                 

Change in restricted deposit with CBN (10,726,455)                  220,395                         

Change in derivative financial instruments-assets (12,211,824)                  (816,280)                       

Change in loans and advances to banks and customers (30,715,490)                  (59,705,560)                  

Change in other assets (18,670,258)                  (16,466,068)                  

Interest received on loans and advances 37,572,069                    23,241,892                   

Changes in operating liabilities

Change in deposits from banks 49,495,544                    (1,535,246)                    

Change in deposits from customers (59,514,556)                  71,822,112                   

Change in Other laibilities 18,465,486                    (5,526,423)                    

Change in liabilities on investment contracts

Change in derivative financial instruments-liabilities (1,235,085)                    394,528                         

Retirement benefit obligations fulfilled 298,906                         

Interest paid on deposits and borrowings (19,864,111)                  (13,426,687)                  

(68,025,056)                  (18,900,896)                  

Income tax paid (2,358,910)                    (1,808,035)                    

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (70,383,966)                  (20,708,931)                  

Cash flows from Investing activities:

Cash payments to acquire investment securities (64,715,430)                  (29,928,000)                  

Interest received on investment securities 1,223,690                      9,371,976                     

Dividend received 230,909                         2,070,127                     

Acquisition of property and equipment (3,393,558)                    (1,562,434)                    

Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 787,836                         219,867                         

Acquisition of intangible assets (140,438)                        (273,605)                       

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties -                                 80,306                           

Proceeds from matured investment securities 31,921,907                    33,940,209                   

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary and associates -                                 776,200                         

Proceeds from sale of investment securities 69,763,591                    77,287,632                   

Cash lost on loss of control of subsidiaries -                                 (956,473)                       



Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities 35,678,506                   91,025,805                   

Cash flows from financing activities:

Interest paid on interest bearing loans and borrowings (2,485,234)                    (245,787)                       

Dividend paid during the period -                                 -                                 

Repayment of interest bearing borrowings (2,558,426)                    (1,539,852)                    

Proceeds from borrowings -                                 -                                 

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities (5,043,660)                    (1,785,639)                    

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (39,749,119)                  68,531,236                   

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 152,748,398                 266,756,741                 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 310,247                         870,641                         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 113,309,526                 336,158,617                 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (39,749,119)                  68,531,236                   



1.1   Basis of preparation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

(b) Basis of measurement

• 

• 
•   
•  

•  

•  

•  Share based payment at fair value or an approximation of fair value allowed by the relevant standard.

(c) Use of estimates and judgements

1.2   Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the group

(a) Amendments to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation (effective 1 January 2014)

Offsetting -Financial assets and liabilities

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods 

presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statement comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financial position, the consolidated statements of changes in equity, the 

consolidated cash flow statement and the notes.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Naira, which is the Group's presentation currency; except where indicated, financial information presented in Naira has been rounded 

to the nearest thousand.

These consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal enforceable right to set off the 

amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Master netting agreements where the legal right of offset is only enforceable on 

the occurrence of some future event, such as default of the counterparty, does not to meet the offsetting requirements.

(b) Amendments to IAS 36 - Impairment of assets (effective 1 January 2014)

These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. These amendments 

address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal to require disclosure of the recoverable 

amount of an asset or CGU when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed; and to require detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been measured when an 

impairment loss has been recognized or reversed. This Group did not reverse or recognize an impairment loss on its non-financial asset.

Below are the IFRSs and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitee (IFRIC) interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 

January 2014 that are relevant to the group.

None of these standards were early adopted in the prior period by the Group as early adoption is not permitted by the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (FRC).

The IASB has issued amendments to the application guidance in IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial 

liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

The amendments do not change the current offsetting model in IAS 32, which requires an entity to offset a financial asset and financial liability in the statement of financial position only when 

the entity currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off and intends either to settle the asset and liability on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The 

amendments clarify that the right of set-off must be available today – that is, it is not contingent on a future event. It also must be legally enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course 

of business, as well as in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy.  The changes requires extensive disclosures focus on quantitative information about recognized financial instruments 

that are offset in the statement of financial position, as well as those recognized financial instruments that are subject to master netting or similar arrangements irrespective of whether they 

are offset.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies 

and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision 

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.
Non-derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Investment property is measured at fair value.
The liability for defined benefit obligations is recognised as the present value of the defined benefit obligation and related current service cost

Non-current assets held for sale measured at fair value less costs to sell. Investment property classified as non-current asset held for sale are measured at fair value, gain or loss arising 

The interim financial statements of the Parent and the Group have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 ‘Interim financial reporting’ as issued with International Accounting Standards Board 

and with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act  and the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 April 2015

General information

Access Bank Plc (“the Bank”) is a company domiciled in Nigeria. The address of the Bank’s registered office is Plot 999c, Danmole Street, off Adeola Odeku/Idejo Street, Victoria Island, Lagos 

(formerly Plot 1665, Oyin Jolayemi, Victoria Island, Lagos). The consolidated financial statements of the Bank for the period ended 31 March 2015 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries 

(together referred to as “the Group” and separately referred to as “Group entities”). The Group is primarily involved in investment, corporate, commercial and retail banking and is listed on the 

Nigerian Stock Exchange. 



(c) IFRIC 21 - Levies (effective 1 January 2014)

(d) Amendments to IFRS 7 on offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (effective 1 January 2014)

Impact of the adoption of IAS 32, 36  and IFRIC 21 

Amendments to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation (effective 1 January 2014 )

Amendments to IAS 36 - Impairment of assets (effective 1 January 2014)

(iii) New and amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (effective 1 January 2018)

The following changes in accounting policies are expected to reflect in the Group's consolidated and separate condensed interim financial statements as at and for the period ending 31 March 

2015.

The IASB has issued amendments to the application guidance in IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial 

liabilities on the balance sheet. However, the clarified offsetting requirements for amounts presented in the statement of financial position continue to be different from Generally Accepted 

Accounting practices in the United States of America)

These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. These amendments 

address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal, to require disclosure of the recoverable 

amount of an asset or CGU when an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed; and to require detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been measured when an 

impairment loss has been recognised or reversed. 

As at 31 March 2015, a number of standards and interpretations, and amendments thereto, had been issued by the IASB which are not yet effective for these consolidated financial statements. 

Details are set out below. 

IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 (2010) introduces additions relating to financial liabilities. The IASB currently has an 

active project to make limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 and add new requirements to address the impairment of financial assets and hedge 

accounting. 

The IFRS 9 (2009) requirements represents a significant change from the existing requirements in IAS 39 in respect of financial assets. The standard contains two primary measurement 

categories of financial assets: amortised cost and fair value. A financial asset would be measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows, and the asset's contractual terms give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All 

other financial assets would be measured at fair value. The standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, available-for-sale and loans and receivables. For an 

investment in equity instrument which is not held for trading, the standard permits an irrevocable election, on initial recognition, on an individual share-by-share basis, to present all fair value 

changes from the investment in other comprehensive income. No amount recognized in other comprehensive income would ever be reclassified to profit or loss at a later date. However, 

dividend on such investments are recognized in the income statement, rather than other comprehensive income unless they clearly represent a partial recovery of the cost of the investments. 

Investments in equity instruments in respect of which an entity does not elect to present fair value changes in other comprehensive income would be measured at fair value with changes in fair 

value recognized in the income statement. The group is yet to assess IFRS 9’s full impact. 

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy that is not income tax.   The interpretation could result in recognition of a liability later than today, particularly in 

connection  with levies that are triggered by circumstances on a specific date. It addresses the accounting for a liability to pay a levy recognized in accordance with IAS 37, ‘Provisions’, and the 

liability to pay a levy whose timing and amount is certain. It excludes income taxes within the scope of IAS 12, ‘Income taxes’. The interpretation does not address whether the liability to pay a 

levy gives rise to an asset or an expense. Entities will need to apply other standards to determine the accounting for the expense. The Group is not subjected to levies that are not income taxes 

within the scope of IAS 12

Disclosures- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (amendments to IFRS 7) introduces disclosures about the impact of right of offsets and related arrangements for financial 

instruments under a master netting or similar arrangements.  The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and interim periods within those annual 

periods. The amendments are applied restrospectively, the Group has offsetting arrangements in place as at March 2015. The application of the amendments had no material impact on the 

disclosures or the amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements. 



Other IFRS that are relevant to the group include: 

Effective Date

1.3   Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

a) power over the investee;
b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns 

a) 

b)
c)

d) potential voting rights

Amendments to IAS 19, 

‘Employee

benefits’ on defined benefit 

plans

Annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2014

This amendment clarifies the application of IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ (2011) – referred to as ‘IAS 19R’, to plans that require 

employees or third parties to contribute towards the cost of benefits. The amendment does not affect the

accounting for voluntary contributions. 

Amendment to IFRS 2, 

’Share based payment’

For share-based payment

transactions for which the 

grant date is on or after

1 July 2014.

The amendment clarifies the definition of a ‘vesting condition’ and separately defines ‘performance condition’ and service condition’.

IFRS Subject of amendment

The IASB has amended the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13 to clarify that it did not intend to remove the ability to measure short-term 

receivables and payables at invoice amounts in such cases.

IAS 24, ‘Related party 

disclosures’

Annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2014

The standard is amended to include, as a related party, an entity that provides key management personnel services to the reporting 

entity or to the parent of the reporting entity (‘the management entity’). The reporting entity is not required to

disclose the compensation paid by the management entity to the management entity’s employees or directors, but it is required to 

disclose the amounts charged to the reporting entity by the management entity for services provided.

IFRS 3, ‘Business 

combinations’

For business combinations

where the acquisition date 

is

on or after 1 July 2014.

The standard is amended to clarify that IFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of any joint arrangement under IFRS 

11. The amendment also clarifies that the scope exemption only applies in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

IFRS 8, ‘Operating 

segments’

Annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2014

The standard is amended to require disclosure of the judgements made by management in aggregating operating segments. This 

includes a description of the segments which have been aggregated and the economic indicators

which have been assessed in determining that the aggregated segments share similar economic characteristics. The standard is further 

amended to require a reconciliation of segment assets to the entity’s assets when segment assets are reported.

IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and 

equipment’, and IAS 38, 

‘Intangible assets’

Annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 July 2014

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group exercise control. Control is achieved when the Group can demonstrate it has:

The investor shall reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed. The existence and 

effect of potential voting rights are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity.

 The group assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power i.e when it holds less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee. An investor 

considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not it's voting rights are sufficient to give it power, including:

a contractual arrangement between the investor and other vote holders 

rights arising from other contractual arrangements
the investor’s voting rights (including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings)

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value 

measurement’

Annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2014

The IASB has amended the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13 to clarify that it did not intend to remove the ability to measure short-term 

receivables and payables at invoice amounts in such cases. The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13, which 

allows an entity to measure the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis, applies to all contracts 

(including non-financial contracts) within the scope of IAS 39 or IFRS 9.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from 

contracts with customers’

Annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2017

The Standard outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers 

to improve

comparability within industries, across industries, and across capital markets. The revenue standard contains principles that an entity 

will apply to determine the

measurement of revenue and timing of when it is recognised. The underlying principle is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict 

the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or 

services.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.



(ii) Business combinations

•

•

•

(iii)  Acquisitions from entities under common control

(iv) Loss of control

the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in the 

acquiree; less
the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When this total is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in statement of comprehensive income, after a re-assessment to ensure correctness.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in in the income statement.

Transactions costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are 

expensed as incurred.

 Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured and settlement is 

accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the income statement.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

 Subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment in the separate financial statement. 

The Group applies IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised)  in accounting for business combinations. 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern 

the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights. 

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the total of:

the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

When share-based payment awards (replacement awards)  are required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s  employees (acquiree’s awards) and relate to past services , then all 

or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s  replacement awards is included in measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination. This determination is based on the market-

based value of the replacement awards compared with the market-based value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and/or future service.

The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure non-controlling interest at its fair value, or at its proportionate share of the recognised amount of the identifiable 

net assets, at the acquisition date.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that controls the group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at 

the beginning of the earliest comparative year presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities 

acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group controlling shareholder’s consolidated financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired 

entities are added to the same components within Group equity and any gain/loss arising is recognised directly in equity.

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any 

surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in the income statement. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at 

the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for financial instruments.



(v) Disposal of subsidaries

(vi) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

(vii) Associates

Investments in associates are measured at cost less impairment in the separate financial statement. 

(viii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

1.4   Segment reporting

1.5   Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in 

associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased 

to recognise the investor’s share of the profit/loss and other comprehensive income of the investee after the date of acquisition. The group’s investment in associates includes goodwill 

identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is 

reclassified to the income statement where appropriate.

The group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other 

comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the 

associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the 

associate.

The group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the group calculates the amount of 

impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of associates in the income 

statement

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the group and its associate are recognised in the group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated 

investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from intercompany transactions that are 

recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

When the group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in 

income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, 

any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may 

mean that amounts previously recognised in other  comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement.

The gain/loss arising from disposal of subsidiaries is included in the profit/loss of discontinued operations in the statement of comprehensive income.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The 

difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to 

non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity. 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it can earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to 

transactions with any of the Group’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the Executive Committee (being the chief operating decision maker) to make 

decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional 

currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Naira’, which is the group’s presentation currency.

The Group in the normal course of business sets up Structured Entiries (SEs) for the sole purpose of raising finance in foreign jurisdictions. The SEs raises finance in the currency of their 

jurisdictions and passes the proceeds to the group entity that set them up. All costs and interest on the borrowing are borne by the sponsoring group entity. These SEs are deemed to be 

extensions of the sponsoring entity, and hence, their functional currency is the same as that of the sponsoring entity.



(ii) Transactions and balances

(iii) Group companies

(a)

(b)

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

1.6   Operating income

(i) Interest income and expense

•   
•   

(ii) Fees and commission

(iii) Net gains/losses on financial instuments classified Held for Trading

(iv) Foreign exchange income

(v) Dividends

1.7   Lease payments

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates 

prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences 

arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within "interest income" and "interest expense"  in the consolidated income statement using the 

effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant 

period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where 

appropriate, a shorter period) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all 

contractual terms of the financial instruments but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes contractual fees and points paid or received, transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the effective interest 

rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or liability.

The Group in the normal course of business sets up Structured Entiries (SEs) for the sole purpose of raising finance in foreign jurisdictions. The SEs raises finance in the currency of their 

jurisdictions and passes the proceeds to the group entity that set them up. All costs and interest on the borrowing are borne by the sponsoring group entity. These SEs are deemed to be 

extensions of the sponsoring entity, and hence, their functional currency is the same as that of the sponsoring entity.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign 

exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are recognised in the income statement. Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed between 

translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in 

amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the income statement as part of the fair value 

gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as available for sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation 

currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

Foreign exchange income includes foreign exchange gains on revaluation and unrealised foreign exchange gains on revaluation.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends are reflected as a component of other operating income.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of 

the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each 

period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the 

minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

Interest income and expense presented in the statement of comprehensive income include:
interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated on an effective interest rate basis.
interest on available-for-sale investment securities calculated on an effective interest basis

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, investment management and other fiduciary activity fees, sales commission, placement fees and syndication fees, are 

recognised as the related services are performed. When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are recognised on a straight-line basis 

over the commitment period.

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes and foreign exchange differences.



1.8   Income tax expense

(i) Current tax

(ii) Deferred tax

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each 

period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the 

minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 

income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the bank and its subsidiaries operate 

and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It 

establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated 

financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax 

is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is 

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred 

income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary 

difference is controlled by the group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets 

and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a 

net basis.



1.9   Financial assets and liabilities

The table below reconciles classification of financial instruments to the respective IAS 34/39 category.

Equity securities

Debt securities

Cash on hand and balances with banks

Restricted balances with central banks

Loans to individuals

Receivables
Listed

Listed

Listed
Unlisted

Listed

Unlisted

Demand deposits

Savings deposits

Term deposits

(a) Classification, recognition and measurement

 - Financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

In accordance with IAS 39, all financial assets and liabilities (which include derviative financial insturments) have to be reocognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and 

measured in accordance with their assigned category. 

Financial assets

Category 

(as defined by IAS 39) Class (as determined by the Group)
Sub classes

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Non pledged trading assets

Held to maturity
Investment securities - debt securities

Pledged assets

Available for sale financial assets

Investment securities - debt securities

Investment securities - equity 

securities

Loans and receivables

Cash and balances with banks
Unrestricted balances with central banks

Money market placements and other cash 

equivalents

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers Loans to corporate entities and other 

organisations

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Retirement benefit obligations
Liability for defined benefit and defined 

contribution
Other liabilities

The purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for in the Group's books at settlement date.

The Group allocates financial assets to the following IAS 39 categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-

sale financial assets. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

Other assets

Category 

(as defined by IAS 39) Class (as determined by the Group)

Sub classes

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Deposits from banks

Deposits from customers

This category comprises two sub-categories: financial assets classified as held for trading and financial assets designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial 

recognition.

Financial instruments included in this category are recognised initially at fair value; transaction costs are taken directly to the consolidated income statement. Gains and losses arising from 

changes in fair value are included directly in the consolidated income statement and are reported as Net gains on financial instruments classified as held for trading. Interest income and 

expense and dividend income and expenses on financial assets held for trading are included in ‘Net interest income’ or ‘Dividend income’, respectively. The instruments are derecognised when 

the rights to receive cash flows have expired or the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognising. 



•   

•   

•   

(ii) Loans and receivables

(iii) Held-to-maturity

•   

•   

•   

(iv) Available-for-sale

Availabe for sale instruments include investment seccurities. 

The asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the Group does not intend to sell immediately or 

in the near term. 

Finance lease receivables are reported within loans and receivables where the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement. Such lease agreement transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards 

incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee. The loans and receivables equal to the net investment in the lease is recognised and presented within loans and advances.

When the Group purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset (or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (“reverse repo or 

stock borrowing”), the arrangement is accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is not recognised in the Group’s financial statements.

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value – which is the cash consideration to originate or purchase the loan including any transaction costs – and measured subsequently at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Loans and receivables are reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as loans and advances to banks or customers or 

as investment securities. Interest on loans is included in the consolidated income statement and is reported as ‘Interest income’. In the case of an impairment, the impairment loss is reported 

as a deduction from the carrying value of the loan and recognised in the consolidated income statement under "net impairment loss on financial assets"

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, and which 

are not designated at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or available-for-sale.

The Group designates certain financial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss (fair value option). This designation cannot subsequently be changed. According to IAS 

39, the fair value option is only applied when the following conditions are met:

The assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise.

Interest income is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement when the Group becomes entitled to the 

dividend. Foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale debt security investments are recognised in the income statement

Other fair value changes are recognised directly in other comprehensive income until the investment is sold or impaired whereupon the cumulative gains and loses previously recognised in 

other comprehensive income are recognised to the income statement as a reclassification adjustment.

A non-derivative financial asset may be reclassified from the available-for-sale category to the loans and receivable category if it otherwise would have met the definition of loans and 

receivables and if the Group has the intention and ability to hold that financial asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

These are initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs and measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Any sale or 

reclassification of a significant amount of held-to-maturity investments not close to their maturity would result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available-for- sale, 

and prevent the Group from classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity for the current and the following two financial years. However, sales and reclassifications in any of the 

following circumstances would not trigger a reclassification:

Sales or reclassification that are so close to maturity that changes on the market rate of interest would not have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value.

Sales or reclassification after the Group has collected substantially all the asset’s original principal.
Sales or reclassification attributable to non-recurring isolated events beyond the Group’s control that could not have been reasonably anticipated.

Interest on held-to-maturity investments is included in the consolidated income statement and reported as ‘Interest income’. In the case of an impairment, the impairment loss is been reported 

as a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and recognised in the consolidated income statement as ‘net impairment loss on financial assets’. Held-to-maturity investments 

include treasury bills and bonds.

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative investments that are not designated as another category of financial assets. Unquoted equity securities whose fair value cannot be reliably 

measured are carried at cost and subjected to impairment. All other available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.



 - Financial liabilities

(i)  Financial liabilities at amortised cost

(ii) Financial liabilities at fair value

(b) De-recognition

 - Financial assets

(c ) Renegotiated loans

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is included in 'Interest 

expense' in the Statement of comprehensive income. 

Deposits and debt securities issued are the Group’s sources of debt funding. When the Group sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into a “repo” or “stock lending” agreement to 

repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date, the arrangement is accounted for as a deposit, and the underlying asset continues to be recognised in the Group’s 

financial statements as pledged assets.

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total rate of return swap on the transferred assets, the transaction is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar to 

repurchase transactions as the Group retains all or substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the group continues 

to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions the Group retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or 

liability is recognised for the servicing contract, depending on whether the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for performing the servicing.

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as 

new loans. In subsequent years, the asset is considered to be past due and disclosed only if renegotiated again.

The Group classifies debt instruments as financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the contractual terms of the instrument.

Deposits and debt securities issued are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest 

method, except where the Group designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

On this statement of financial position, financial liabilities carried at amortised cost include deposit from banks, deposit from customers and interest bearing loans and borrowings.

The Group may enter into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts, 

interest rate swaps and foreign currency options.  Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. A derivative with 

a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss 

immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge 

relationship. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or 

settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Derivative assets and liabilities are only offset if the transactions are with the same counterparty, a legal right of offset exists and the parties intend to settle on a net basis.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability in the 

statement of financial position. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset 

transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration received ( including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in 

other comprehensive income is recognised in the income statement.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a 

portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised from the financial position. Transfers of assets with retention of all or 

substantially all risks and rewards include, for example, securities lending and repurchase transactions.



 -  Financial liabilities

Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

(d) Offsetting

(e ) Sale and repurchase agreements

(f) Measurement

(i) Amortised cost measurement

(ii) Fair value measurement

(g) Identification and measurement of impairment

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal enforceable right to set off the 

amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group establishes fair value using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between 

knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, and discounted cash flow analysis. The chosen valuation 

technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates specific to the Group, incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, 

and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-

return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Group calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same 

instrument or based on other available observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the 

fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such fair value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions 

in the same instrument (without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in 

the income statement on initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases the difference is not recognised in the income statement immediately but is recognised over the life of the 

instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

Assets and long positions are measured at a bid price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an asking price. Where the Group has positions with offsetting risks, mid-market prices are 

used to measure the offsetting risk positions and a bid or asking price adjustment is applied only to the net open position as appropriate. Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and 

include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Group entity and the counterparty where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, 

such as liquidity risk or model uncertainties, to the extent that the Group believes a third-party market participant would take them into account in pricing a transaction.

At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired 

when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that 

can be estimated reliably. 

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the obligor, default or delinquency by a borrower resulting in a 

breach of contract, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the 

disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or 

economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below cost is objective 

evidence of impairment.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group’s trading activity.

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) remain on the statement of financial position; the counterparty liability is included in amounts due to other banks, deposits from 

banks, other deposits or deposits due to customers, as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos’) are recorded as money market placement. The difference 

between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

Securities lent to counterparties are also retained in the financial statements. Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in which 

case the purchase and sale are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the 

cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily 

available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.



(i) Loans and receiveables

(ii) Available for sale securities

(g) Cash and balances with banks

(h) Repossessed collateral

(i) Derivative financial instruments

(j) Reclassification of financial assets

k) Pledged assets

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity investments at both a specific and collective level. All individually significant loans and advances and 

held-to maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant loans and advances and held-to maturity investments found not to be specifically impaired 

are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually 

significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities (held at amortised cost) with similar characteristics.

Repossessed collateral are equities, investment properties or other investments repossesed from a customer and used to settle his outstanding obligation. Such investments are classified in 

accordance with the intention of the Group in the asset class which they belong and are also seperately disclosed in the financial statement.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from 

quoted market prices in active markets (for example, for exchange-traded options), including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques (for example for swaps and currency 

transactions), including discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is 

negative.

The Group mitigates the credit risk of derivatives by holding collateral in the form of cash.

The Bank may choose to reclassify a non-derivative financial asset held for trading out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling it in the 

near-term. Financial assets other than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held for trading category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is 

unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near-term. In addition, the Bank may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-

trading or available-for-sale categories if the Bank has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded 

before reclassification date are subsequently made.  Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the 

reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for 

management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical modelling. Default 

rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets and the present value of estimated cash flows 

discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in the income statement and reflected in an allowance account against loans and advances. Interest on the 

impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed 

through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised by transferring the cumulative loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income to the income 

statement as a reclassification adjustment. 

For debt securities, the group uses the criteria referred to in (i) above to assess impairment.If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as 

the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss – is removed from equity and 

recognised in the income statement.  For equity, a prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the asset is impaired. Impairment losses recognised in 

the consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-

sale debt security increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, then the impairment loss is reversed through the income 

statement; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognised through OCI. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is always recognised in OCI. 

The Group writes off previously impaired  loans and advances (and investment securities) when they are determined not to be recoverable. The Group writes off loans or investment debt 

securities that are impaired (either partially or in full and any related allowance for impairment losses) when the Group credit team determines that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Cash and balances with banks include notes and coins on hand, balances held with central banks and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of less than three months, which are 

subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the management of its short-term commitments.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, unrestricted balances with foreign and central banks, money market placements and other short-

term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 



1.10 Investment properties

1.11 Property and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

(ii) Subsequent costs

(iii) Depreciation

Over the shorter of the useful life of the item or lease term

Over the shorter of the useful life of the item or lease term
50 - 60 years

3 - 4.5 years

3 - 6 years

4 years

Financial assets transferred to external parties that do not qualify for de-recognition are reclassified in the statement of financial position from financial assets held for trading or investment 

securities to assets pledged as collateral, if the transferee has received the right to sell or re-pledge them in the event of default from agreed terms. 

Initial recognition of assets pledged as collateral is at fair value, whilst subsequent measurement is based on the classification of the financial asset. Assets pledged as collateral are either 

designated as held for trading,

available for sale or held to maturity. Where the assets pledged as collateral are designated as held for

trading, subsequent measurement is at fair value through profit and loss, whilst assets pledged as collateral

designated as available for sale are measured at fair-value through equity. Assets pledged as collateral

designated as held to maturity are measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 

item will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day repairs and maintenance of property and equipment are recognised in Income statement as 

incurred.

Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis to write down the cost of items of property and equipment, to their residual values over the estimated useful lives. 

Leased assets under finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

Depreciation begins when an asset is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is derecognised or classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5. A non-current 

asset or disposal group is not depreciated while it is classified as held for sale.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods of significant items of property and equipment are as follows:

Leasehold Land and Building

Leasehold improvements

An investment property is an investment in land or buildings held primarily for generating income or capital appreciation and not occupied substantially for use in the operations of the Group. 

An occupation of more than 15% of the property is considered substantial. Investment properties is measured initially at cost including transaction cost and subsequently carried in the 

statement of financial position at their market value and revalued yearly on a systematic basis. Investment properties are not subject to periodic charge for depreciation. Gains or losses arising 

from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in the consolidated income statement in the period which it arises as: "Fair value gain on investment property"

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in income 

statement inside operating income. 

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting. 

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition of the asset.

When significant parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment, and are 

recognised net within other income in the Income statement

Buildings

Computer hardware

Furniture and fittings

Motor vehicles



(iv) De-recognition

1.12 Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

(ii) Software

1.13   Leases

A group company is the lessee

(i) Operating lease

(ii) Finance lease

An item of property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset 

(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in income statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and it is tested annually for impairment.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-

generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose identified in accordance with IFRS 8. 

Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is tested annually as well as whenever a trigger event has been observed for impairment by comparing the present value of the expected future cash 

flows from a cash generating unit with the carrying value of its net assets, including attributable goodwill and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill 

are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Software acquired by the Group is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on internally developed software is recognised as an asset 

when the Group is able to demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the development and use the software in a manner that will generate future economic benefits, and can reliably 

measure the costs to complete the development. The capitalised costs of internally developed software include all costs directly attributable to developing the software, and are amortised over 

its useful life. Internally developed software is stated at capitalised cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 

expensed as incurred.

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each date of the statement of financial position. Assets are veviewed for impairment whenever events 

or changed in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

Capital work in progress is not depreciated. Upon completion it is transferred to the relevant asset category. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each 

reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Amortisation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects 

the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Software has a finite useful life, the estimated useful life of software is between three and five years. 

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Leases are accounted for in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. They are divided into finance leases and operating leases.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Payments, including prepayments, made 

under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to operating expenses in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease and used 

as investment property.

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the 

lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a 

constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in deposits from banks or deposits from customers depending on 

the counter party. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 

balance of the liability for each period. The investment properties acquired under finance leases are measured subsequently at their fair value. 



A group company is the lessor

1.14  Impairment of non-financial assets

1.15   Discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

1.16  Provisions

(i) Restructuring

1.17  Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value, and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the financial 

guarantee. The guarantee liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the present value of any expected payment (when a payment under the guarantee has 

become probable). Financial guarantees are included within other liabilities.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is estimated at each reporting date. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable 

amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 

of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are 

largely independent of cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit" or CGU). Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwil impairment 

testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been allcated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting 

purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 

the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed 

only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 

recognised.

The Group presents discontinued operations in a separate line in the consolidated income statement if an entity or a component of an entity has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale 

and:                                                       

(a) Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;

(b) Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; or

(c) Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale (for example, certain private equity investments).

Net profit from discontinued operations includes the net total of operating profit and loss before tax from operations, including net gain or loss on sale before tax or measurement to fair value 

less costs to sell and discontinued operations tax expense. A component of an entity comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial 

reporting purposes, from the rest of the Group´s operations and cash flows. If an entity or a component of an entity is classified as a discontinued operation, the Group restates prior periods in 

the consolidated income statement.

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale or distribution rather than through continuing use, are classified 

as held for sale or distribution. Immediately before classification as held for sale or distribution, the assets, or components of a disposal group, are re-measured in accordance with the Group’s 

accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets, or disposal group, are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Any impairment loss on a disposal 

group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee 

benefit assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. 

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the 

receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic 

rate of return. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets other than goodwill and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for 

use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

Investment property classified as non-current asset held for sale are measured at fair value, gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of investment property is recognised in income 

statement for the period in which it arise.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale or distribution and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in the income statement. Gains are not recognised 

in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

Once classified as held for sale or distribution, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer 

equity accounted.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic 

benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 

value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expenses. 

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly. 

Future operating costs are not provided for.



1.18  Employee benefits

(i)  Defined contribution plans

(ii) Termination benefits

(iii) Long-term Incentive Plan

(iv) Short-term employee benefits

(v)  Share-based payment remuneration scheme

1.19   Share capital and reserves

(i) Share issue costs

(ii) Dividend on the Bank’s ordinary shares

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value, and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the financial 

guarantee. The guarantee liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the present value of any expected payment (when a payment under the guarantee has 

become probable). Financial guarantees are included within other liabilities.

A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a seperate entity and will have no legal or constructive obliagtion to pay 

further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement when they are due in respect of service rendered 

before the end of the reporting period. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a 

defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value at the 

reporting date.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instruments.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period when approved by the Bank’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are declared after the end of the reporting period are 

dealt with in the subsequent events note.

The Bank operated a cash-settled share based compensation plan (i.e. share appreciation rights - SARs) for its management personnel . The management personnel are entitled to the share 

appreciation rights at a pre-determined price after spending five years in the Bank. 

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are settled in cash, is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over 

the period in which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is re-measured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the 

liability are recognized as personnel expense in the income statement. Liability under this scheme was settled in 2012.

During the period, the cash settled share based payment scheme was replaced by a new plan called Restricted Share Performance Plan (RSPP). Under the RSPP, shares of the Bank are awarded 

to employees based on their performance at no cost to them and the shares will have a vesting period of 3 years from date of award. 

This new plan will be accounted for as an equity-settled transaction, where the Bank will recognize a cost and a corresponding increase in equity. The cost is recognized as an expense unless it 

qualifies for recognition as an asset. Initial estimates of the number of equity settled instruments that are expected to vest are adjusted to current estimates and ultimately to the actual 

number of equity settled instruments that vest unless differences are due to market conditions.

The Bank operates a funded, defined contribution pension scheme for employees. Employees and the Bank contribute 7.5% of each of the qualifying staff salary in line with the provisions of the 

Pension Reforms Act 2004.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for 

these benefits. The group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity 

recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the 

termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are 

discounted to their present value.

The Bank has a non-contributory, un-funded lump sum defined benefit plan for top executive management of the Bank from General Manager and above based on the number of years spent in 

these positions.

Depending on their grade, executive staff of the Bank upon retirement are  entitled to certain benefits based on their length of stay on that grade. The Bank's net obligation in respect of the 

long term incentive scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that eligible employees have earned in return for service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is 

discounted to determine its present value. The rate used to discount the post employment benefit obligation is determined by reference to the yield on Nigerian Government Bonds, that have 

maturity dates approximating the terms of the Bank's obligations.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to 

past service by employees is recognized in the income statement on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest 

immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in the income statement. The Bank recognized all actuarial gains or losses and all expenses arising from defined benefit plan immediately in 

the income statement.   However during the year, IAS 19 became effective and all actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income during the period under review.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 

result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.



(iii) Treasury shares

(iv) Earnings per share

Where the Bank or any member of the Group purchases the Bank’s share capital, the consideration paid is deducted from the shareholders’ equity as treasury shares until they are cancelled or 

disposed. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in shareholders’ equity.

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calcuated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by 

the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted 

avergae number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.



2.0        Use of estimates and judgements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Allowances for credit losses

Statement of prudential adjustments

a)

Collective allowance for group of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans and 

advances and held to maturity investment securities with similar credit characteristics when there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired loans and advances and 

held to maturity investment securities, but the individual impaired items cannot yet be identified. In assessing the need for collective loan loss allowances, management considers 

factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations, and economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance, assumptions are made to define the way inherent losses 

are modelled and to determine the required input parameters, based on historical experience and current economic conditions. The accuracy of the allowances depends on estimates of 

future cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and the model assumptions and parameters used in determining collective allowances are estimated.

These disclosures supplement the commentary on financial risk management. Estimates where management has applied judgements are:

(i) Allowances for credit losses

(ii)Valuation of financial instruments

(iii) Determination of fair value of investment property

(iv) Determination of impairment of property and equipment, and intangible assets excluding goodwill

(v) Assessment of impairment of goodwill on acquired subsidiaries

(vi) Defined benefit plan

Loans and advances to banks and customers are accounted for at amortised cost and are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in accounting policy

The Bank reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a half yearly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the 

Bank makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating an impairment trigger followed by measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a 

portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment 

status of borrowers in a bank, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the Bank. 

The Bank makes use of estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio  

when scheduling future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any 

differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

The specific component of the total allowances for impairment applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based upon management’s best estimate of the 

present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, management makes judgements about a debtor’s financial situation and the net 

realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are 

independently reviewed by the Credit Risk Management Department (CRMD).

A collective component of the total allowance is established for:

•  Groups of homogeneous loans that are not considered individually significant and

•  Groups of assets that are individually significant but were not found to be individually impaired 

Collective allowance for groups of homogeneous loans is established using statistical modelling of historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of 

loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested 

by historical modelling.  Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain 

appropriate. 

Had there been no expected cashflows from all the significant impaired loans, there would have been an additional impairment of N11.862billion in the financial statements relating to 

this. In addition, if the PDs and LGDs were increased by 2%, there would have been an additional impairment charge of N233Mn and if the PDs and LGDs decreased by 2%, there would 

have been a write back of impairment of N228Mn.

Provisions under prudential guidelines are determined using the time based provisioning regime prescribed by the Revised Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Prudential Guidelines. This is at 

variance with the incurred loss model required by IFRS under IAS 39. As a result of the differences in the methodology/provision regime, there will be variances in the impairments 

allowances required under the two methodologies.

Paragraph 12.4 of the revised Prudential Guidelines for Deposit Money Banks in Nigeria stipulates that Banks would be required to make provisions for loans as prescribed in the 

relevant IFRS Standards when IFRS is adopted. However, Banks would be required to comply with the following:

Provisions for loans recognised in the profit and loss account should be determined based on the requirements of IFRS. However, the IFRS provision should be compared with 

provisions determined under prudential guidelines and the expected impact/changes in general reserves should be treated as follows:

•  Prudential Provisions is greater than IFRS provisions; the excess provision resulting should be transferred  from the general reserve account to a "regulatory risk reserve".

•  Prudential Provisions is less than IFRS provisions; IFRS determined provision is charged to the statement of  comprehensive income. The cumulative balance in the regulatory 

risk reserve is thereafter reversed to the general reserve account



b)

Statement of prudential adjustments March December

In thousands of Naira 2015 2014

Bank Note

Loans & advances:

Specific impairment allowances on loans to customers 13 7,505,987 6,340,159

Collective impairment allowances on loans to customers 13 12,240,217 10,672,319

Total impairment allowances on loans per IFRS 19,746,204 17,012,478

Total regulatory impairment based on prudential gudielines 36,748,185 34,014,459

Balance, beginning of the year 17,001,981 11,177,662

Additional transfers to regulatory risk reserve -                                 5,824,319

Balance, end of the year 17,001,981 17,001,981

3.0        Financial instrument measured at fair value

(a) Financial instruments in level 1

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

(c) Financial instruments in level 3

The Bank has complied with the requirements of the guidelines as follows:

•  Prudential Provisions is less than IFRS provisions; IFRS determined provision is charged to the statement of  comprehensive income. The cumulative balance in the regulatory 

risk reserve is thereafter reversed to the general reserve account

The non-distributable reserve should be classified under Tier 1 as part of the core capital. 

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.  A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily 

and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market 

transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1. Instruments 

included in Level 1 comprise primarily government bonds, corporate bonds, treasury bills and equity investments classified as trading securities or available for sale  investments.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable 

market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 

included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments 

include:

(i) Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

(ii) The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value;

(iii) Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of its financial assets. Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow 

models, comparison with similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and other valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free 

and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices 

and expected price volatilities and correlations. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be received to sell the 

asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

For more complex instruments, the Group uses proprietary valuation models, which are usually developed from recognised valuation models. Some or all of the significant inputs into 

these models may not be observable in the market, and are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated based on assumptions. Examples of instruments involving significant 

unobservable inputs include certain Investment securities for which there is no active market. Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of 

management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgement and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model 

to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued, determination of the probability of counterparty default and prepayments and 

selection of appropriate discount rates. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, such as liquidity risk or model uncertainties, to the extent that the 

Group believes that a third party market participant would take them into account in pricing a transaction. Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to 

take account of the credit risk of the Group entity and the counterparty where appropriate.

For level 2 assets, fair value was obtained using a recent market transaction during the year under review. Fair values of unquoted debt securities were derived by interpolating prices of 

quoted debt secuirties with similar maturity profile and characteristics. There were no transfer between levels 1 and 2 during the year.



(ii) Determination of fair value of financial instruments.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values

Description

Fair value at 31 Mar 

2015

Valuation 

Technique Unobservable Inputs

Fair value if inputs 

increased by 5%

Fair value if inputs 

decreased by 5%

Relationship of 

unobservable inputs 

to fair value 

Investment in 

African Finance 

Corpooration 26,891,794                 

 Adjusted fair value 

comparison 

approach 

 Average P/B multiples of 

comparable companies                     28,236,384                     25,547,204 

  The higher the P/B 

ratio of similar trading 

companies, the higher 

the fair value  

Investment in 

Unified Payment 

System 2,384,009                   

 Adjusted fair value 

comparison 

approach 

 Median of Enterprise 

value to EBITDA ratio 

(EV/EBITDA) of similar 

comparable companies                        2,463,059                       2,304,958 

  The higher the 

EV/EBITDA ratio of 

similar trading 

companies, the higher 

the fair value 

Investment in 

CSCS 1,847,493                   

 Adjusted fair value 

comparison 

approach 

 Median of Enterprise 

value to EBITDA ratio 

(EV/EBITDA) of similar 

comparable companies                        1,936,668                       1,758,318 

  The higher the 

EV/EBITDA ratio of 

similar trading 

companies, the higher 

the fair value 

Investment in 

Stanbic IBTC 

Pension managers 1,452,636                   

 Adjusted fair value 

comparison 

approach 

 Average P/B multiples of 

comparable companies                        1,525,268                       1,380,004 

  The higher the P/B 

ratio of similar trading 

companies, the higher 

the fair value  

Investment in 

NIBSS 1,026,992                   

 Adjusted fair value 

comparison 

approach 

 Weighted Price to 

earnings (P/E) ratio of 

similar comparable 

companies                        1,078,342                          975,643 

  The higher the P/E 

ratio of similar trading 

companies, the higher 

the fair value  

(iii) Determination of fair value of investment property classified as asset held for sale

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The present value of the long term incentive plan depends on a number of factors that are determined in an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these 

assumptions will impact the carrying amount of obligations. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. The Group determines 

the appropriate discount rate at the end of the reporting period. In determining the appropriate discount rate, reference is made to the yield on Nigerian Government Bonds that have 

maturity dates approximating the terms of the related pension liability. Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.

Level 2 fair values of investments have been generally derived using the adjusted fair value comparison approach. Quoted price per earning or price per book value, enterprise value to 

EBITDAratios of comparable entities in a similar industry were obtained and adjusted for key factors to reflect estimated ratios of the investment being valued. Adjusting factors used 

are the Illiquidity Discount which assumes a reduced earning on a private entity in comparison to a publicly quoted entity and the Haircut adjustment which assumes a reduced earning 

for an entity located in Nigeria contributed by lower transaction levels in comparison to an entity in a developed or emerging market. Below is a table showing sensitivity analysis of 

material unquoted investments categorised as Level 2 fair values.\

Management employed the services of estate surveyors and valuers expert to value its investment properties. The estimated open market value is deemed to be the fair value based on 

the assumptions that there will be willing buyers and sellers. Recent market prices of neighborhood properties were also considered in deriving the open market values. A variation of -

/+5% will result in N37.5Mn fair value loss/gain respectively.

Determination of impairment of property and equipment, and intangible assets excluding goodwill

Management is required to make judgements concerning the cause, timing and amount of impairment. In the identification of impairment indicators, management considers the impact 

of changes in current competitive conditions, cost of capital, availability of funding, technological obsolescence, discontinuance of services and other circumstances that could indicate 

that impairment exists. The Group applies the impairment assessment to its separate cash generating units. This requires management to make significant judgements and estimates 

concerning the existence of impairment indicators, separate cash generating units, remaining useful lives of assets, projected cash flows and net realisable values. Management’s 

judgement is also required when assessing whether a previously recognised impairment loss should be reversed.

Assessment of impairment of goodwill on acquired subsidiaries

Goodwill on acquired subsidiaries was tested for impairment using discounted cash flow valuation method. Projected cash flows were discounted to present value using a discount rate 

of 15.18% and a cash flow growth rate of 10.32% over a period of five years. The Group determined the appropriate discount rate at the end of the reporting period.

Defined benefit plan



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 31 March, 2015

In thousands of Naira Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

1 Interest income

Cash and cash equivalents 814,395                        846,693                        636,696                        662,052                        

Loans and advances to banks and customers 37,572,069                  28,800,480                  33,587,524                  26,406,339                  

Investment securities 8,028,412                    9,980,853                    6,934,321                    8,834,011                    

46,414,876                  39,628,026                  41,158,541                  35,902,402                  

2 Interest expense Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

Deposit from banks 1,681,680                    347,754                        1,545,565                    272,902                        

Deposit from customers 18,273,217                  13,407,568                  16,241,599                  13,458,970                  

Securities dealing 5,130                            4,014                            1,081                            1,538                            

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1,590,894                    1,257,600                    1,855,980                    1,277,669                    

Debt Securities Issued 1,271,247                    212,056                        1,198,937                    -                                

22,822,168                  15,228,992                  20,843,162                  15,011,079                  

3 Fee and commission income Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

Credit related fees and commissions 3,487,244                    2,994,660                    2,989,480                    2,656,321                    

Commission on turnover and handling commission 817,486                        1,357,607                    817,486                        1,248,941                    

Other fees and commissions 5,314,549                    6,014,825                    4,015,476                    4,920,418                    

9,619,279                    10,367,092                  7,822,442                    8,825,680                    

4 Net gains on investment securities Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March  March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

(a) Fixed income securities 1,398,830                    25,795                          1,391,259                    16,024                          

Derivative financial Instruments 11,730,570                  -                                11,730,570                  -                                

Net trading income 13,129,400                  25,795                          13,121,829                  16,024                          

Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March  March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

(b) Net foreign exchange income/(loss)

Foreign exchange net trading income 11,861,080                  2,320,810                    11,594,409                  2,261,998                    

Unrealised foreign exchange (loss)/gains on revaluation (8,407,753)                   754,501                        (9,175,089)                   330,243                        

3,453,327                    3,075,311                    2,419,320                    2,592,241                    

Net gains on financial instruments classified as held for trading includes the gains and losses arising both on the purchase and sale of trading instruments and



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 31 March, 2015

5 Other operating income Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

Dividends on available for sale equity securities 2,932,162                    2,070,127                    2,932,162                    2,070,127                    

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 230,781                        44,288                          85,188                          34,215                          

Gain on disposal of equity investment -                                -                                -                                -                                

Rental income 61,691                          48,490                          51,842                          48,490                          

Bad debt recovered 166,245                        216,139                        97,800                          176,920                        

Other income 784,723                        1,795,130                    736,328                        1,685,592                    

Fair Value Gain/Loss on Invest property -                                -                                -                                

4,175,602                    4,174,174                    3,903,321                    4,015,344                    

6 Net impairment loss on financial assets Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

Collective impairment charges on loans (1,563,104)                   578,649                        (1,574,239)                   204,184                        

impairment charge on available for sale -                                (130,001)                      -                                (130,001)                      

Specific impairment charges on loans and advances (1,390,309)                   (771,982)                      (1,199,363)                   (31,441)                         

Specific impairment on other assets (914,259)                      (1,190,372)                   (914,259)                      (1,516,821)                   

(3,867,672)                   (1,513,706)                   (3,687,861)                   (1,474,079)                   

7 Personnel expenses Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

Wages and salaries 8,350,281                    7,270,058                    6,859,614                    5,976,052                    

Contributions to defined contribution plans 540,276                        180,473                        433,541                        127,482                        

8,890,557                    7,450,531                    7,293,156                    6,103,534                    

8 Other operating expenses Group Group Bank Bank

 3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended  3 Months Ended 

March March March March

2015 2014 2015 2014

AMCON surcharge (see note (a) below) 3,271,180                    2,125,000                    3,271,180                    2,125,000                    

Deposit insurance premium 1,270,100                    1,500,000                    1,270,100                    1,500,000                    

General administrative expenses 13,638,408                  9,648,290                    12,463,663                  8,632,179                    

Insurance 190,174                        174,905                        153,228                        142,441                        

Business travel expenses 937,463                        707,558                        866,724                        666,427                        

Other premises and equipment costs 1,728,309                    1,957,422                    1,532,941                    1,794,503                    

Professional fees 657,849                        1,039,546                    455,665                        731,758                        

Operating lease expenses 616,380                        458,863                        419,011                        409,681                        

22,309,864                  17,611,584                  20,432,513                  16,001,989                  

(a) This represents the Group’s accruals to AMCON’s sinking fund for the period ended 31 March  2015. Effective 1 January 2013, the Bank was required to contribute 

0.5% of its total assets as at the preceding year end to AMCON's sinking fund in line with the guideline. 



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 31 March, 2015

In thousands of Naira

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Cash and balances with Other banks 74,459,737                  49,549,044                  47,527,259                  36,343,757                  

Money market placements 16,780,745                  65,813,241                  -                                36,965,179                  

Unrestricted balances with central banks 22,069,045                  32,060,575                  5,418,661                    22,262,582                  

Restricted deposits with central banks 268,318,388                257,591,933                266,737,024                255,603,361                

381,627,914                405,014,793                319,682,944                351,174,879                

11 Non pledged trading assets

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Equity securities 79,440                          79,440                          79,440                          79,440                          

Treasury bills 24,402,776                  24,546,032                  30,858,565                  24,546,032                  

Government bonds 30,970,335                  3,786,172                    24,369,338                  3,786,172                    

55,452,551                  28,411,644                  55,307,344                  28,411,644                  

12 Pledged assets

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Treasury bills 20,066,357                  15,125,322                  20,066,357                  13,236,528                  

Government bonds 72,956,541                  71,946,825                  72,956,541                  71,946,825                  

93,022,898                  87,072,147                  93,022,898                  85,183,353                  

(i) All pledged assets are  government bonds and Treasury bills.

(ii)

13 Loans and advances to customers

Group Group Bank Bank

In thousands of Naira March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Loans and Advances to customers 1,162,291,009             1,129,446,268             1,031,625,888             1,036,914,985             

Specific Impairment (8,567,966)                   (7,967,529)                   (7,505,987)                   (6,340,159)                   

Collective impairment (12,577,400)                 (11,014,296)                 (12,240,217)                 (10,665,978)                 

1,141,145,643            1,110,464,442            1,011,879,684            1,019,908,848            

Impairment on loans and advances to customers

In thousands of Naira

Specific impairment

Balance beginning of year 7,967,529                    7,944,110                    6,340,159                    6,812,512                    

Impairment loss for the year:

- Charge for the year/(allowance no longer required) 1,390,309                    6,467,595                    1,199,363                    5,649,913                    

Effect of foreign currency movements -                                -                                

Write-offs (789,872)                      (6,444,176)                   (33,535)                        (6,122,266)                   

Balance end of year 8,567,966                    7,967,529                    7,505,987                    6,340,159                    

Collective impairment

Balance beginning of year 11,014,295                  6,550,608                    10,665,978                  6,427,580                    

Impairment loss for the year:

- Charge for the year/(allowance no longer required) 1,563,104                    4,474,651                    1,574,239                    4,249,362                    

Write-offs -                                (10,964)                        -                                (10,964)                        

Balance end of year 12,577,399                  11,014,295                  12,240,217                  10,665,978                  

The assets pledged by the Group are strictly for the purpose of providing collateral to the counterparty for various transactions. These transactions include assets pledged in connection with 

clearing/settlement activities of the Group.

As at 31 March 2015, the Bank held no collateral, which it was permitted to sell or repledge in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral (December 2014: nil).

Restricted deposits with central banks comprise the cash reserve requirements of the Central Bank of Nigeria and other central banks of jurisdictions that the group operates in. These 

balances are not available for day to day operations of the group.
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In thousands of Naira

14 (a)

Investment in subsidiary

Bank Bank

March December

In thousands of Naira 2015 2014

Subsidiaries with continuing operations

13,928,819                  13,928,819                  

Access Bank, Ghana 13,704,428                  13,704,428                  

Access Bank Rwanda 1,578,825                    1,578,825                    

Access Bank, Congo 2,779,650                    2,779,650                    

Access Bank, Zambia 4,274,925                    4,274,925                    

Access Bank, Gambia 1,853,756                    1,853,756                    

Access Bank, Sierra Leone 1,019,951                    1,019,952                    

Investment in RSPP scheme 976,125                       976,125                       

Access Bank Finance B.V. 4,092                            4,092                            

Subsidiaries undergoing liquidation

Flexmore Technologies Limited 100,000                       100,000                       

40,220,571                  40,220,571                  

Specific allowances for impairment on investment in subsidiaries (100,000)                      (100,000)                      

Balance, end of year 40,120,571                  40,120,571                  

Subsidiaries (with continuing operations)

Group entities

Nature of business

Country of 

incorporation March 2015 December 2014

Access Bank Gambia Limited Banking Gambia 64% 64%

Access Bank Sierra Leone Limited Banking Sierra Leone 97% 97%

Access Bank Rwanda Limited Banking Rwanda 75% 75%

Access Bank Zambia Banking Zambia 92% 92%

The Access Bank UK Banking United Kingdom 100% 100%

Access Bank R.D. Congo Banking Congo 74% 74%

Access Bank Ghana Banking Ghana 92% 92%

Access Finance B.V. (see note (a) below) Banking Netherlands 100% 100%

(a)

(ii) Subsidiaries undergoing liquidation

Nature of business

Country of 

incorporation March 2015 December 2014

Flexmore Technologies Limited IT Services Nigeria 0% 100%

(iii) Structured entities:

Nature of business

Country of 

incorporation March 2015 December 2014

Restricted Share Performance Plan (RSPP) Financial services Nigeria 100% 100%

Ownership interest

Ownership interest

There are no significant restrictions on the Group’s ability to access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of any member of the Group to the extent that regulation does not inhibit the 

group from having access, and in liquidation scenario, this restriction is limited to its level of investment in the entity .

Access Finance B.V. was incorporated in 2011 and commenced operations in 2012. An obligation also exists between the Bank and Access Finance B.V., for which Access Finance B.V. lent to 

the Bank the sum of USD 2,462,000 as a share premium loan. The loan agreement between both parties however permits that the obligation of Access Finance B.V. to grant the loan, be set 

off against the obligation of the Bank to repay the loan such that each party's obligation either as a borrower or lender is discharged. In view of this, no loan payable has been recognized in 

the Bank's financial statements.

Ownership interest

This subsidiary is currently undergoing a winding-down process through the appointment of a court ordered receiver manager to manage their affairs. As a result of this event, the Bank has 

lost control without a change in absolute or relative ownership level. The loss of control in these subsidiaries, have been accounted for in the financail statements.

Access Bank, UK

Set out below are the group's subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015. Unless otherwise stated, the subsidiaries listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held 

directly by the group and the proportion of ownership interests held equals to the voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation is also their principal place of business.
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In thousands of Naira

15 Investment Securities

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Available for sale investment 150,706,880                188,028,529                113,394,649                155,398,807                

Held to maturity investment 84,059,448                  85,328,556                  76,325,736                  73,884,873                  

Specific impairment for unquoted equity securities (3,145,697)                   (3,145,697)                   (3,145,697)                   (3,145,697)                   

231,620,630                270,211,388                186,574,687                226,137,983                

16 Property and equipment Group Group Bank Bank

Group March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Property and equipment- cost 113,684,594                111,340,403                104,622,555                101,867,551                

Accumulated depreciation (42,830,036)                 (41,680,698)                 (38,975,599)                 (37,707,224)                 

70,854,558                  69,659,707                  65,646,956                  64,160,327                  

17 Intangible assets Group Group Bank Bank

Group March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

a Goodwill 681,007                        681,007                        -                                -                                

(i) Goodwill is attributable to the acquisition of following subsidiaries:

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

In thousands of Naira

Access Bank Rwanda 681,007                        681,007                        -                                -                                

681,007                        681,007                        -                                -                                

b Cost- Purchased software 9,438,393                    9,946,474                    8,255,600                    8,255,600                    

WIP 858,750                        740,711                        848,095                        740,711                        

Accum. Amortization (5,557,416)                   (5,775,201)                   (4,858,392)                   (4,559,497)                   

Total 5,420,732                    5,592,992                    4,245,303                    4,436,816                    

Work in progress (WIP) represents the costs being incurred and captalised for the ugrade and subsequent deployment of the the 

Bank's core banking software.

(ii)

Access Bank Rwanda

Compound annual volume growth (i) 10%

Long term growth rate (ii) 10%

Discount rate (ii) 15%

Cash Flow Forecast

There were no capitalised borrowing costs related to the internal development of software during the year ended 31 March 2015 (31 December 2014: nil). The recoverable 

amount of Goodwill as at 31 March 2015 is greater than its carrying amount and is thus not impaired.

Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently when there are indications that impairment may have occurred. No impairment losses on goodwill were 

recognized during the period under review 31 March 2015 (December 2014: Nil)

The recoverable amount of Goodwill as at 31 March 2015 is greater than its carrying amount and is thus not impaired.

The recoverable amount was determined using a value-in-use computation as N1.649Bn.

Goodwill is monitored by the Group on an entity by entity basis

The key assumption used in computing the value-in-use for goodwil in 2014 are as follows:

(i) Compound annual volume growth rate in the initial five-year period.

(ii) Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period.

(ii) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections.

Cash flows were projected based on past experience, actual operating results and the 5-year business plan. These cashflows are based on the expected revenue growth for 

the entity over this 5-year period.
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In thousands of Naira

Growth Rates

18 Other Assets Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Financial assets

Accounts receivable 74,582,093                  52,828,011                  66,573,039                  46,508,768                  

Receivable from AMCON(a) 5,498,909                    5,498,909                    5,498,909                    5,498,909                    

Subscription for investment 549,972                        25,001                          1,351,624                    826,653                        

80,630,974                  58,351,921                  73,423,572                  52,834,330                  

Non-financial assets

Prepayments 16,584,449                  19,518,711                  15,622,446                  17,026,257                  

Inventory 86,626                          761,159                        2,087                            706,891                        

16,671,076                  20,279,870                  15,624,533                  17,733,148                  

Gross other assets 97,302,049                  78,631,791                  89,048,106                  70,567,478                  

Allowance for impairment on financial assets (23,235,436)                 (22,321,171)                 (23,235,436)                 (22,321,171)                 

74,066,614                  56,310,620                  65,812,670                  48,246,307                  

(a)

19 Non-current assets held for sale

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Opening 23,438,484                  23,438,484                  23,438,484                  23,438,484                  

Fair value gain on assets held for sale -                                -                                -                                -                                

Addition -                                -                                -                                -                                

Disposal -                                -                                -                                -                                

Closing 23,438,484                  23,438,484                  23,438,484                  23,438,484                  

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

20 Deposits from financial institutions

Money market deposits 39,839,075                  89,965,383                  103,371,187                72,171,314                  

Trade related obligations to foreign banks 128,701,892                29,080,040                  64,414,445                  62,338,348                  

Total 168,540,967                119,045,423                167,785,632                134,509,662                

21 Deposit from customers

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Term deposits 554,993,898                629,193,734                494,623,787                586,973,213                

Demand deposits 708,770,185                695,850,419                632,187,935                616,476,341                

Saving deposits 131,140,413                129,374,899                119,527,271                121,351,057                

Total 1,394,904,496            1,454,419,052            1,246,338,993            1,324,800,611            

Pre-tax discount rate of 15.18% was applied in determining the recoverable amounts for the only entity with goodwil (Access Bank Rwanda). This discount rate was estimated 

based on past experience, inflation rate, risk-free rate and the weighted average cost of capital allocated by the Group to these units.

The key assumptions described above may change as economic and market conditions change. The Group estimates that reasonably possible changes in these assumptions 

are not expected to cause the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries (from which the goodwill arose) to decline below their carrying amount.

In 2013, Access Bank Plc took over collateral of some customers and these were recorded in the books as Investment properties, as the Bank had no intention to make use of 

the property for administrative use. During the year, management initiated a plan to dispose of these assets to willing buyers to comply with the CBN directive to dispose of 

its non-core assets and thus has been classified as assets held for sale. Management expects to have completed the transaction before the end of the next financial year.

This balance represents a receivable from Asset Management Corporation of Nigeria (AMCON) in connection with the acquisition of Intercontinental Bank in line with the 

Transaction Implementation Agreement (TIA) executed on 6 July 2011 and entered with the Bank. The receivable is expected to be settled via consideration such as cash or 

bonds issued by AMCON.

These investment properties have been valued by reputable estate surveyors and valuers using the comparable transactions method of valuation to arrive at the open market 

value. The portion of the investment property representing land  is N23.7bn. The valuers used bythe bank are Azuka Iheabunike & Partners and Diya Fatimilehin & Co. There 

were no rental income from investment property during the year and no restrcitions on the reaslisability of the property.

 

Investment properties have been reclassified to assets held for sale, as management has initiated a plan to dispose of these properties within a twelve months period.
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In thousands of Naira

22 Debt securities issued

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Debt securities at amortized cost:

Eurobond debt from Access Bank B.V (see (i) below) 65,325,787                  65,325,788                  -                                -                                

Eurobond debt security (see (ii) below) 79,608,331                  73,155,391                  79,608,331                  73,155,391                  

144,934,119                138,481,179                79,608,331                  73,155,391                  

(a)

23 Retirement benefits obligations

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

                         3,568,006                          3,267,364                          3,517,364                          3,267,364 

Liability for defined contribution obligations -                                    1,736                                -                                    -                                    

3,568,006                        3,269,100                        3,517,364                        3,267,364                        

(a) Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Long term incentive plan  (see note (i) below) 3,568,006                        3,267,364                        3,517,364                        3,267,364                        

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 3,568,006                        3,267,364                        3,517,364                        3,267,364                        

(i) Long term incentive plan

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position is as 

follows:

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

In thousands of Naira 2015 2014 2015 2014

Deficit on defined benefit obligations at 1 January 3,267,364                        1,929,695                        3,267,364                        1,929,695                        

Charge for the period:

-Interest costs -                                    241,705                            -                                    241,705                            

-Current service cost 300,642                            179,570                            250,000                            179,570                            

-Past service cost

-Benefits paid -                                    (500,000)                          -                                    (500,000)                          

Net actuarial loss for the year remeasured in OCI

Remeasurements - Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in 

demographic assumptions -                                    216,864                            -                                    216,864                            

Remeasurements - Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in 

financial assumption -                                    1,199,530                        -                                    1,199,530                        

Balance, end of year 3,568,006                        3,267,364                        3,517,364                        3,267,364                        

There is no funding arrangement with a trustee for the long term incentive plan as the Bank pays for all obligations from its current year profit as such obligations fall due. 

Depending on their grade, executive staff of the Bank upon retirement are entitled to certain benefits based on their length of stay on that grade.

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations (see note (a) below)

The Bank operates a non-contributory, unfunded lump sum defined benefit long term incentive plan for top executive management of the Bank from General Manager and 

above based on the number of years spent in these positions. The scheme is also aimed at rewarding executive directors and other senior executives for the contributions to 

achieving the Bank's long-term growth objectives.

(i) This refers to US$350,000,000 guaranteed notes with amortized cost equivalent as at 31 March 2015 of N65,325,788,000 issued on 25 July 2012 by Access Finance B.V., 

Netherlands with a maturity date of 25 July 2017; 

(ii) This refers to US$400,000,000 subordinate notes with amortized cost of N79,608,331,000 of 9.25% resettable interest issued on 24 June 2014 by Access Bank Nigeria with 

a maturity date of 24 June 2021. 

The principal amount on both notes are payable at maturity, whilst interest is payable on a semi-annual basis at their respective interest rates.
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In thousands of Naira

Expense recognised in income statement:

Current service cost 300,642                            264,726                            250,000                            264,726                            

Interest on obligation -                                    145,865                            -                                    145,865                            

Past service cost 390,578                            390,578                            

Total expense recognised in profit and loss 300,642                            801,169                            250,000                            801,169                            

Actuarial assumptions:

March December

2015 2014

Future salary increases 5% 5%

Retirement age for both male and female                   60 years                   60 years

Retirement rate: 50 – 59 (average rate) 3% 3%

Withdrawal rate: 16 – 29 5% 5%

Withdrawal rate: 30 – 44 6% 6%

Withdrawal rate: 45 – 50 5% 5%

Withdrawal rate: 51 – 55 (average rate) 4% 4%

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

24 Current tax liabilities

Current Tax Liabilities 8,671,878                    8,180,969                    7,754,712                    7,113,226                    

8,671,878                    8,180,969                    7,754,712                    7,113,226                    

Group Group Bank Bank

25 Other Liabilities March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Financial liabilities

Certified and bank cheques 3,414,290                 3,166,277                    1,833,429                    1,978,995                    

E-banking payables 4,078,491                 2,769,805                    4,075,510                    1,830,591                    

Collections account balances 3,118,049                  2,355,222                    3,118,049                    1,695,416                    

Due to subsidiaries -                            -                                390,327                        389,662                        

Accruals 736,625                    104,309                        404,905                        32,438                          

Creditors 765,105                     1,316,758                    243,883                        469,209                        

Customer deposits for foreign exchange 20,678,408              8,700,913                    20,585,449                  8,594,218                    

Agency services 303,209                    289,769                        271,835                        253,264                        

Other financial liabilities 2,280,760                1,498,749                    2,166,477                    434,396                        

35,374,937                  20,201,802                  33,089,864                  15,678,189                  

Non-financial liabilites

Litigation claims provision 359,812                        311,120                        359,812                        311,120                        

Other current liabilties 4,419,817                    1,176,157                    2,088,407                    880,823                        

4,779,629                    1,487,277                    2,448,219                    1,191,943                    

Total other liabilities 40,154,566                  21,689,079                  35,538,083                  16,870,132                  

26 Interest bearing loans and borrowings Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

On-lending 81,532,174                  79,816,309                  81,447,118                  79,816,309                  

Loan from Access Finance BV -                                -                                69,863,023                  66,529,458                  

81,532,174                  79,816,309                  151,310,141                146,345,767                

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 11years. The information on the maturity profile of the defined benefit plan includes the maturity analysis 

and the distribution of the timing of payment. The estimated contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period is: N0.996Bn

Assumptions regarding future mortality before retirement are based on A49/52 ultimate table published by the Institute of Actuaries of United Kingdom. The rate used to 

discount post employment benefit obligations has been determined by reference to the yield on Nigerian Government bonds of medium duration. This converts into an 

effective yield of 13% as at 31 December 2014.  For members in active service as at the valuation date, the projected unit credit method of valuation as required under the 

IFRS has been adopted.

The most recent valuation was performed by Alexander Forbes as at 31 December 2014.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
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27 Equity

A Share capital

Bank Bank

In thousands of Naira March December

2015 2014

(a)  Authorised:

Ordinary shares:

38,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of 50k each 
(2013: 24,000,000,000 ordinary share of 50k each) 19,000,000                  12,000,000                  

Preference shares:

2,000,000,000 Preference shares of 50k each 1,000,000                    1,000,000                    

20,000,000                  13,000,000                  

Bank Bank

March December

In thousands of Naira 2015 2014

(b)  Issued and fully paid-up :

22,882,918,908  Ordinary shares of 50k each 11,441,460                  11,441,460                  

Ordinary shareholding:

Preference shareholding:

The movement on the issued and fully paid-up share capital account during the year was as follows:

Bank Bank

March December

2015 2014

In thousands of Naira

Balance, beginning of year 11,441,460                  11,441,460                  

Issue of scheme shares to shareholders -                                -                                

Transfer from bonus issue reserve -                                -                                

Closing 11,441,460                  11,441,460                  

(c)   The movement on the number of shares in issue during the year was as follows:

Bank Bank

March December

2015 2014

In thousands of units

Balance, beginning of year 22,882,919                  22,882,919                  

Balance, end of year 22,882,919                  22,882,919                  

B Share premium

Share premium is the excess paid by shareholders over the nominal value for their shares.

Bank Bank

March December

2015 2014

In thousands of Naira

Share premium 161,036,211                161,036,211                

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank pari-

passu with the same rights and benefits at meetings of the Bank.

Preference shares do not carry the right to vote. Preference shareholders have priority over ordinary shareholders with regard to the residual assets of the Bank and 

participate only to the extent of the face value of the shares plus any accrued dividends. No preference shares were in issue as at the end of the reporting period.
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In thousands of Naira

C Reserves

(i) Other Reserves

a Statutory reserves

b Small and Medium Scale Industries Reserve (SMEEIS)

(ii) Share scheme reserve

(iii) Treasury shares

(iv) Capital reserve

(v) Fair value reserve

(vi) Foreign currency translation reserve

In thousands of Naira Group Group

March December

2015 2014

Opening Foreign Currency Translation Reserve [01 January] (3,710,648)                   (4,815,485)                   

Additional foreign translation gain/(loss) recognised in reserves 1,575,709                    1,007,650                    

Foreign translation gains recognised into profit/loss arising from disposal of subsidiary -                                97,187                          

Closing (2,134,939)                   (3,710,648)                   

(vii) Regulatory risk reserve

(viii) Retained earnings

(ix) Contingency reserves

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Share Capital 11,441,460                  11,441,460                  11,441,460                  11,441,460                  

Share Premium 161,036,211                161,036,211                161,036,211                161,036,211                

172,477,671                172,477,671                172,477,671                172,477,671                

The contingency reserve in 31 December 2013 represents the reserve that was set aside from retained earnings for the contingencies to guard against the risk that would 

arise from the merger and acqusition of Intercontinental bank.

The fair value reserve comprises the net cumulative change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until the investment is derecognised or impaired.

This balance appears only in the Group accounts and represents the foreign currency exchange difference arising from translating the results and financial position of all the 

group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency.

The regulatory risk reserves warehouses the difference between the allowance for impairment losses on balance on loans and advances based on Central Bank of Nigeria 

prudential guidelines and Central Bank of the foreign subsidiaries regulations, compared with the loss incurred model used in calculating the impairment under IFRSs.

Retained earnings are the carried forward recognised income net of expenses plus current period profit attributable to shareholders. 

This represents the total expenses incurred in providing the Bank's shares to its qualifying staff members under the RSPP scheme.

This represents the shares held by the new RSPP scheme which have not yet been allocated to staff based on the pre-determined vesting conditions.

This balance represents the surplus nominal value of the reconstructed shares of the Bank which was transferred from the share capital account to the capital reserve account 

after the share capital reconstruction in October 2006. The Shareholders approved the reconstruction of 13,956,321,723 ordinary shares of 50 kobo each of the Bank in issue 

to 6,978,160,860 ordinary shares of 50 kobo each by the creation of 1 ordinary shares previously held.

Nigerian banking regulations require the Bank to make an annual appropriation to a statutory reserve. As stipulated by S.16(1) of the Banks and Other Financial Institution Act 

of Nigeria, an appropriation of 30% of profit after tax is made if the statutory reserve is less than paid-up share capital and 15% of profit after tax if the statutory reserve is 

greater than the paid up share capital.

The SMEEIS reserve is maintained to comply with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) requirement that all licensed banks set aside a portion of the profit after tax in a fund to 

be used to finance equity investment in qualifying small and medium scale enterprises. Under the terms of the guideline (amended by CBN letter dated 11 July 2006), the 

contributions will be 10% of profit after tax and shall continue after the first 5 years but banks’ contributions shall thereafter reduce to 5% of profit after tax. However, this is 

no longer mandatory. The small and medium scale industries equity investment scheme reserves are non-distributable.
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28 Retained earnings Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Opening 34,139,453                  22,232,374                  36,499,779                  23,095,393                  

Addition 13,493,381                  11,907,078                  12,201,021                  13,404,386                  

Closing 47,632,834                  34,139,453                  48,700,801                  36,499,779                  

29 Other components of equity Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Capital Reserve 3,489,081                    3,489,080                    3,489,081                    3,489,081                    

Fair Value Reserves 10,398,552                  9,881,402                    10,350,568                  9,833,418                    

Other Regulatory Reserves 37,078,604                  37,078,604                  34,558,437                  34,558,437                  

Other Reserves 20,557,712                  20,524,323                  17,330,789                  17,297,400                  

Translation reserve (2,134,939)                   (3,710,648)                   -                                -                                

69,389,010                  67,262,761                  65,728,875                  65,178,336                  

30 Contingencies

Claims and litigation

Contingent liability and commitments

Nature of instruments

The table below summarises the fair value amount of contingent liabilities and commitments off-financial position risk:

Acceptances, bonds, guarantees and other obligations for the account of customers:

a. These comprise:

Group Group Bank Bank

March December March December

In thousands of Naira 2015 2014 2015 2014

Contingent liabilities:

Transaction related bonds and guarantees 186,733,354                165,466,393                174,398,606                145,831,160                

Financial guarantees 85,232,860                  91,373,327                  85,054,855                  72,221,845                  

271,966,213                256,839,720                259,453,461                218,053,005                

Commitments:

Clean line facilities for letters of credit, unconfirmed letters 

of credit and other commitments 571,695,652                377,152,396                462,089,516                372,652,653                

843,661,866                633,992,116                721,542,978                590,705,658                

The Bank granted clean line facilities for letters of credit during the year to guarantee the performance of customers to third parties. 

Contractual capital commitments undertaken by the Bank amounted to N1.69Bn (31 Dec 2014: N1.99Bn)

The Group is a party to numerous legal actions arising out of its normal business operations. The Directors believe that, based on currently available information and advice of 

counsel, none of the outcomes that result from such proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Group, either individually or in the 

aggregate. A provision of N311Mn has been made for the year ended 31 December 2014. In the normal course of business, the group is a party to financial instruments with 

off-balance sheet risks. These instruments are issued to meet the credit and other financial requirements of customers.

In common with other banks,  Group conducts business involving acceptances, performance bonds and indeminities. The majority of these facilities are offset by 

corresponding obligations of third parties. Contingent liabilities and commitments comprise acceptances, endorsements, guarantees and letters of credit.

An acceptance is undertaken by a bank to pay a bill of exchange drawn on a customer. The Group expects most acceptances to be presented, but reimbursement by the 

customer is normally immediate. Endorsements are residual liabilities of the Group in respect of bills of exchange, which have been paid and subsequently rediscounted.

Guarantees and letters of credit are given as security to support the performance of a customer to third parties. As the Group will only be required to meet these obligations 

in the event of the customer's default, the cash requirements of these instruments are expected to be considerably below their nominal amounts.

Other contingent liabilities include transaction related custom and performance bonds and are generally short term commitments to third parties which are not directly 

dependent on the customer's credit worthiness. Commitments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer in the future, subject to certain condictions. Such commitments 

are either made for a fixed period, or have no specific maturity dates but are cancellable by the lender subject to notice requirements. Documentary credits commit the 

Group to make payments to third parties, on production of documents, which are usually reimbursed immediately by customers. 
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31 Related party transactions

32 Director-related exposures

Parent

The parent company, which is also the ultimate parent company, is Access Bank Plc.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise influence over the other party in making financial and operational 

decisions, or one other party controls both. The definition includes subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and the Group’s pension schemes, as well as key management 

personnel.

The Group’s key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related parties. The definition of key management includes the close 

members of family of key personnel and any entity over which key management exercise control. The key management personnel have been identified as the executive and 

non-executive directors of the Group. Close members of family are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that individual in their 

dealings with Access Bank Plc and its subsidiaries.

The Bank’s gross exposure to insiders as at March 31, 2015 is N2.37bn. All transactions are done at market rate  and are at arm's length.

Access Bank has some exposures that are related to its Directors. The Bank however follows a strict process before granting such credits to its Directors. The requirements for 

creating and managing this category of risk assets include the following amongst others:

a.    Complete adherence to the requirements for granting insider-related exposure as stated in the Bank’s Credit Policy Guidelines, the Insider-related Policy as well as the 

Bank’s duly approved Standard Operating 

b.    Full compliance with the relevant CBN policies on insider-related lending.

c.     All affected Directors are precluded from taking part in the approval process of credit request wherein they have interest. 

d.    The related Director is required to execute a document authorizing the Bank to use their accruable dividends to defray any related-obligor's delinquent exposures.

e.    The Directors are required to execute documents for the transfer of their shares to the Bank’s nominated broker to ensure effective control as required by the CBN policy 

to enhance the bank’s Corporate 

f.    Section 89 of the Bank’s Article of Association also reiterated that “a related Director shall vacate office or cease to be a Director, if the Director directly or indirectly 

enjoys a facility from the Bank 


